
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

 
Health Scrutiny 
Panel 
21 March 2024 

 
Time 
 

1.30 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Committee Room 3 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre 

Membership 
 
Chair Cllr Susan Roberts MBE (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Paul Singh (Con) 
 
Labour Conservative  

Cllr Carol Hyatt 
Cllr Jaspreet Jaspal 
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal 
Cllr Rashpal Kaur 
Cllr Asha Mattu 
Cllr Gillian Wildman 
 

Cllr Sohail Khan 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is three voting members. 
 
Information for the Public 
 
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Scrutiny Team: 

Contact Lee Booker 
Tel/Email Lee.Booker@Wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Scrutiny Office, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 
Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  
Tel 01902 555046 
 
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 
 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda 
 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 
  
MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS 
  
1 Apologies  
  
2 Declarations of Interest  
  
3 Minutes of previous meeting (Pages 3 - 16) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.] 

  
  

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
4 Royal Wolverhampton Trust Hospital Transport Service (Pages 17 - 30) 
 [Staff from the Royal Wolverhampton Trust to address the Panel] 

  
5 One Wolverhampton - Pharmacy (Pages 31 - 40) 
 [Officers from Public Health and the Integrated Care Board to address the Panel] 

  



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 

 
Minutes 

 

Health Scrutiny Panel 
Minutes - 18 January 2024 

 
Attendance 

 
Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel 
 
Cllr Carol Hyatt 
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal 
Cllr Rashpal Kaur 
Cllr Sohail Khan 
Stacey Lewis 
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE (Chair) 
Cllr Paul Singh (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Gillian Wildman 
 
Attendees 
 
Gemma Jameson – Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust 
Sabita Nair – Clinical Director of Gynaecology  
Martina Morris – Deputy Chief Nurse Royal Wolverhampton Trust 
Vivek Khashu – Strategy and Engagement Director West Midlands Ambulance Service 
Pippa Wall – Head of Strategic Planning 
Mandy Poonia – Co-Chair Healthwatch 
Andrea Cantrill – Volunteer Officer Healthwatch 
Paul Tulley – Managing Director Wolverhampton Integrated Care Board 
Tapiwa Mtemachani - Director of Transformation and Partnership for NHS Black Country 
Integrated Care Board 
Jonathan Fellows – Chair of the Integrated Care Board and Integrated Care Partnership 
 
Employees 
 
John Denley – Director of Public Health 
Madeleine Freewood – Public Health Partnership and Governance Lead 
Ainee Khan – Consultant In Public Health 
Riva Eardly – Principle Public Health Specialist 
Natalie Davis – Senior Public Health Specialist 
Lee Booker – Scrutiny Officer 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Part 1 – items open to the press and public 

 
Item No. Title 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

1 Apologies 
Apologies were received from Councillor Mattu. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest 
There were no declarations of interest from the Panel. 
 

3 Minutes of previous meeting 
The minutes of the meeting which occurred on the 14th December 2023 were 
approved as a true and correct record. 
 

4 Gynaecology Services Review 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust began the presentation (a 
copy is attached to the signed minutes) which showed an overview of the current 
waiting times for Gynaecology services across the Royal Wolverhampton Trust 
(RWT) . She stated that they faced some challenges, attributing some of this to a 
backlog created by the Covid-19 pandemic. She stated they had outsourced some of 
their services to Health Harmony to give the RWT further support on tackling the 
backlogs. She said their backlog had reduced from being over 4500 patients to just 
under 4000 patients.  Choice of access for Acute Services at New Cross Hospital 
were summarised as – Monday to Friday (8am – 4pm), out of hours via emergency 
department, direct access for patients (following telephone referral), they offered 
emergency surgery.  Outpatient services were primarily at New Cross Hospital, 
although some were offered at Cannock Chase Hospital. Patients had a choice of a 
female doctor, although they reported that for some sub-specialities they were not 
able to provide that option due to a lack of females in the specific role. Initiatives they 
were currently working through included an endometriosis centre (with a robot for 
robotic surgery), nurse led triage for suspected cancer patients, expanding 
ambulatory gynaecology and other examples covered in the slides. They had been 
working collaboratively with the Black Country Integrated Care System (ICS) with the 
aim of reducing health inequalities across the Black Country, some examples given 
were – health hubs within the community, streamlining GP referral guidelines and a 
workforce review across the ICS. They had collaborated with OneWolverhampton 
around further education for GPs. The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton 
Trust also reported on some things they did to support diversity which included: Sign 
language services, providing hoists for patients, access to the learning disability 
team, discussions with the transgender community around cervix screening, and 
providing interpreter services.  
 
A Councillor wanted to know how the RWT gynaecology waiting times compared with 
the national average waiting times.  
 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust stated they were working 
towards the NHSE National Target to reduce to 78 weeks. Based on patients that 
attended between January and December last year. When a patient had been seen 
and had treatment, the list displayed how long they would wait. They discussed with 
other Trusts within the ICS to compare and work together, as well as reporting to the 
National NHS their performance.  
 
 
The Councillor stated that the question had not been answered. 
 
The Clinical Director of Gynaecology replied that within the ICS, they had the longest 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

waiting times compared to other hospitals, she attributed this to a suspension of 
gynaecology services during the pandemic, with staff sent to support other services. 
There was also significant illness within the workforce which also added to the 
delays. Other hospitals did not close their gynaecology services for 2 years, unlike 
RWT. 
 
The Councillor asked if other Trusts outsourced services, referring to the comment 
made earlier about outsourcing to Health Harmony, she stated she believed this 
would cost more than providing a service in house. She wanted to know if the cost 
comparison had been made and if it was deemed the most effective use of 
resources. 
 
The Clinical Director of Gynaecology answered that the RWT were the last within the 
ICS to adopt outsourced services with Health Harmony. She stated that they did not 
want to but harm to patients outweighed cost so they eventually decided to outsource 
services. She stated that this decision had been internally scrutinised and whilst it 
would cost them more money, it would generate a return. The Clinical Director of 
Gynaecology stated she did not have the fine details at hand to explain this point fully 
but stated she would be happy to come back to the Panel with the information. She 
stated that they had specific criteria of patients who they referred to Health Harmony, 
which were only straight forward/simple cases, not complex ones. 
 
The Deputy Chief Nurse asked the Panel if they would like her team to share the 
numbers and broader context of details with them via email. 
The Chair confirmed this. 
 
A member of the Panel wanted to know what the longest waiting time was that 
someone had to wait, pointing out that the times listed in the presentation were 
averages. He also wanted to know what their collaborations had done to reduce 
inequalities in the poorest wards in Wolverhampton. 
 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust answered that they met twice 
weekly with the Trust and they had to report patients that were waiting beyond 78 
weeks to end their treatment date. She said they did have patients who were waiting 
over 78 weeks for their whole pathways. She said the statistics shown in the 
presentation were for those waiting for their first appointments only. She said she 
could provide information on waiting times based on the whole pathway to the Panel. 
She discussed the work being done with OneWolverhampton around menopause 
referrals, she gave an example of a menopause consultant who felt that many 
patients on waiting lists who arrived could have been dealt with at Primary Care level 
rather than being referred to her. The work they were aiming to do was around 
education to GPs on support they could give at a primary care level to avoid 
unnecessarily sending people to a secondary care pathway. 
 
The Councillor stated he wanted the different statistics for first appointments rather 
than just averages displayed.  
 
A Panel member asked if contributions to delay times were caused by any labour 
issues, resources issues or if it was simply demand outstripping supply. 
 
The Clinical Director of Gynaecology stated that the workforce was a challenge, as 
she felt the NHS was not encouraging of newer staff due to pay and conditions. She 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

stated that in this field, as the workforce was reliant on people who had been in the 
profession for a long time, they were subjected to normal life cycles and at times 
when a staff member was off at length, this would cause issue as it was difficult to fill 
the gap. She cited cancer specialists in gynaecology as an example where they had 
advertised 4 times in the country for the role but could not get anyone for the role, 
she stated that often those with the expertise were going abroad for better pay and 
conditions. They also tried advertising abroad for the role and were still unable to fill 
the position. 
 
The Councillor replied that given the issues discussed about providing services, he 
did not understand why the government were trying to move services from 5 days a 
week to 7 days a week. He felt this would be impossible. He asked what cost was 
generated by missed appointments. 
 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust stated that there “did not 
attend” levels were at 9 percent and they had reduced it to 6.6 percent but utilising 
volunteers who called patients near the time of their appointment to aid the patient if 
they had issues with transport or other such problems which may cause them to miss 
an appointment. 
 
The Chair stated she believed a number of people chose to wait because of the 
option of robotic surgery, she wanted to know if this affected waiting times. 
 
The Clinical Director of Gynaecology replied that robotic surgery was niche and did 
not apply to all patients. She said they had specific criteria patients had to meet to 
receive robotic surgery and that only 3 consultants were trained to use them. She 
said robotic surgery was only for cancer cases and complex endometriotic cases. 
She said it would not be cost effective to offer robotic surgery to all patients and 
stated that the robot also covered several other departments, not just theirs. 
 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust added that if it was the case 
patients were waiting longer than necessary for robotic surgery which caused delays, 
they would have a clinical review to address this issue. 
 
The Vice Chair stated that he had disagreed with previous comments made by a 
Panel member in reference to the government trying to increase service delivery 
days from 5 days to 7 days. He felt it would be an improvement to offer more days of 
service for patients. He said he did not feel it was a correct analysis to compare the 
challenges at New Cross Hospital to all hospitals in the country when discussing the 
government’s policy as other hospitals may have the staff to meet the longer days. 
He said New Cross Hospital may have challenges, but those challenges were to be 
met and overcome. He wanted to know if the RWT were collaborating with other 
Trusts and hospitals. He commented that the  78-week waiting time was awfully long 
and wanted to know why this was the case. 
 
The Clinical Director of Gynaecology said that in reference to the 5 day service, this 
applied only to early pregnancy assessment unit working time. She stated there were 
doctors and nurses which were in 24/7 who provided emergency services, she said it 
applied to a dedicated area only. She said due to staffing levels it was not currently 
possible to extend the service to cover 7 days a week. She stated that they 
collaborated with the ICS and gave examples of where the RWT was leading and in 
other areas behind other partners in the ICS, she also gave examples of 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

collaboration with other hospitals, citing that they took referrals for cancer treatment 
relating to gynaecology from other areas such as Dudley, Shrewsbury and Walsall.  
She stated they had a patient focused service and addressed individual needs 
regarding questions of addressing diversity. 
 
The Vice-Chair asked if it was standard practice that New Cross informed patients of 
the long waiting times and gave them a choice of options at other hospitals further 
away which may have a shorter waiting time. 
 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust replied that patients were able 
to see their waiting times online and through the GP and could compare it to other 
hospitals where they could request their GP to try book them at another hospital. 
 
A Councillor asked if they knew the reasons for missed appointments. She also 
wanted to know if cost implications were considered and if financed transport was 
offered to those patients that chose to travel further afield to other hospitals if 
referred there. 
 
The Directorate Manager Royal Wolverhampton Trust stated they did not yet do this 
but this was part of the next stage of work they were doing with their new volunteers 
in tackling “Did Not Attend” cases. 
 
The Councillor wanted to know how they handled isolated patients who were on their 
own. Citing an example of a “buddy service”. 
 
The Clinical Director of Gynaecology stated that upon first appointment missed, in 
particular with cancer patients, they sent a letter to the GP informing them of the 
missed appointment, urging the patient to call them back and that they would offer a 
second appointment and did not cancel services right away. 
 
The Chair wanted to know what services could they not offer a female consultant for. 
 
The Directorate Manager of Royal Wolverhampton Trust stated that they only had 3 
male consultants for sub specialist cancer treatment and could not offer a female 
consultant at this time. This specifically related to complex cases. She stated other 
areas within the service had mixed sex consultants and that it was subject to 
availability. 
 

5 West Midlands Ambulance Service Review Wolverhampton 
Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS began the presentation (a copy is attached 
to the signed minutes) with a brief overview and summary of his role, he informed the 
Panel they had begun appointing specialists in maternity care to improve the West 
Midlands Ambulance Service’s (WMAS) care of pregnant women and that a lot of 
collaborative work and training had been put into developing staffs expertise in this 
area. He stated that WMAS served 6 Integrated Care Board (ICB) areas and that 
they were a partner member of the Black Country ICB. All ICB Chairs and CEOs 
were invited twice a year to meet with the WMAS Chair and CEO to discuss 
partnership working. He showed the Panel two comparative graphs of hospital hand 
over delays looking at West Midlands rates overall across different years and the 
Black Country rates overall across different years. He said before Covid, lost hours to 
handover were significantly lower compared to post Covid handover hours. He said 
that the delays have had an impact on their response times, before Covid they were 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

always meeting their response times across all categories and were the only 
ambulance trust able to do that. However, post Covid they were no longer able to do 
this. This contributed to late finishes for colleagues, contributed issues to phone call 
operatives unable to dispatch ambulances to people in time, and impacted on 
patients. They had been working with partners to improve pathways with the aim of 
reducing ambulance call outs. He showed postcode performance ratings, which were 
mostly in the red and not hitting target. He explained to the Panel that WMAS had 
expanded their electric vehicles and now had a fleet of them, in aid of the 2030 NHS 
England goal of zero carbon emitting vehicles. Strategy and Engagement Officer 
WMAS stated that electric vehicles were far more expensive than fuel powered 
vehicles, he said this was challenging and that the infrastructural challenges would 
cause further difficulties. He stated that violence and abuse to staff was a growing 
issue that in the previous year they had recorded 2000 incidents. He said that as of 
December 2023, they had recorded 2500 incidents and that the financial year was 
not over yet. In response they had been exploring different ways to protect staff, 
which included trialling stab proof vests and body worn cameras; however, staff had 
a wide range of views on these approaches and consultation was still underway. 
  
The Chair wanted to know how the Trust was aiming to reduce the hand-over delays 
back to pre-pandemic levels.  The Chair also commented that she would have liked 
WMAS to include a slide looking at the delay levels of Wolverhampton specifically. 
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS stated that he would share this 
information with the Scrutiny Officer to distribute to the Panel.  
 
The Chair stated that the Health Scrutiny Panel wanted to ensure all NHS organs 
had a robust freedom to speak up process. She wanted WMAS to reassure the 
Panel that they had an excellent freedom to speak up system and to inform the Panel 
how they had learned from previous issues. 
  
The Head of Strategic Planning WMAS replied that following the Lucy Letby case, 
nationally all ambulance services were required to do a review and provide 
information to the relevant governing bodies displaying how their freedom to speak 
up processes worked and performed. She said they had an improvement plan in 
place and had been working with internal and external colleagues to ensure 
compliance. She said they were always looking to improve the process and were 
engaging with staff to do so, this included using networks, freedom to speak up 
ambassadors and other promotional activities to encourage staff to feedback to 
them. 
 
The Vice Chair wanted to know how the WMAS were progressing on the 
electrification of their fleet, relative to the 2030 deadline set by the NHS.  
 
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS stated that they had a whole range of 
vehicles which were electric. He said as and when opportunities had arisen to allow 
them to further increase their electric fleet, they were taken. He also stated they were 
increasing infrastructure for these. He said the NHS needed increased funding to 
meet these targets as capital was struggling at this time to meet the demands 
required to go green. He said the government delivered the mandate and so they 
should help more, he also hoped technology would become cheaper and would allow 
them to transition more economically. 
  

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

A Panel member expressed his disappointment that ambulance staff were facing 
abuse and violence from the people they were trying to help. He noted that the 
infrastructure for electric vehicles was still in its infancy and wanted to know how this 
would impact on service delivery for the WMAS as they transitioned to a fully electric 
fleet. He also wanted WMAS to explain why there was such a huge rise in handover 
ambulance delays in the years following the covid 19 lock down period. 
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS stated that the current range of electric 
ambulances meant that they worked in largely urban areas, like the city of 
Birmingham. However, in areas like Shropshire which were largely rural, these 
vehicles would struggle to be effective in their current form. He said technology still 
needed to be developed further by the market. He said the large increase in hand-
over delays were multi-faceted and gave a few reasons: pent up demand from 
people not having full access to health care during the lockdown period, primary care 
services saturated with higher demand but fewer doctors, 8 million people on the 
waiting lists nationally, hospitals had huge multi-level demand alongside workforce 
capacity issues, patients staying in acute beds longer in hospitals. He said the NHS 
structure now had a bottleneck issue.  
 
A Councillor gave an example wherein Doctors were advising patients to get 
someone to drive them to the hospital rather than dial 999 for an ambulance because 
it would be faster to be seen. She wanted to know how important dialogue with 
Doctors at a Primary Care level was. 
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS replied that it was a concern that the 
public were losing trust in emergency services ability to deliver. He said that two 
years ago, WMAS had changed their call scripts to provide indicative waiting times 
for ambulance arrivals to callers so that they could decide as to whether they wanted 
to drive in or not should they have that option. He said there was a growing list of 
alternative pathways to care which meant they wouldn’t need to go to the emergency 
department. He said that one you stripped back those patients who could use those 
pathways however, waiting times would still be too long for those in need of 
emergency services at Accident and Emergency. 
 
A Panel member asked the Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS what his 
thoughts were on how they could reduce the 30-minute waiting times for ambulances 
to arrive at a patients location. 
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS stated they were meeting these times 
in 2020/2021 but that the rise in handover delays had caused the problem.  He felt a 
restoration in patient flow was required. He said they were due to have an 
independent capacity review, something they hadn’t had since 2009.  The Strategy 
and Engagement Officer WMAS said that the scale of the problem was NHS wide 
and whilst they could contribute, it would not fix the issue due to the interlinked 
nature of the problem. 
 
A Councillor asked if the rapid response team went out to serious mental health 
emergencies and if this helped lighten the pressure on the ambulances. 
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS said these were called Urgent 
Community Response Units (UCRU). He stated that UCRU’s were an example of 
increased alternative pathways to care which were helping to reduce pressure on 

Page 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

ambulances. He said these would only go so far in aiding the problem and stated that 
the change in demography, primarily aging population and frailty was the driver for 
high demand on services. He said Health and Social Care had not kept pace with the 
increase in people over the age of 85 and this was contributing to the situation the 
NHS was in now. 
 
The Chair stated there were possible examples where alternative pathways to care, 
as designed to reduce burden on accident and emergency, could become a 
hinderance. She stated there may be issues with the sign posting, which could lead 
to multiple phone calls before the right service route is provided.  
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS replied he agreed there were 
complexities with the Health and Social Care system which made it difficult for them 
to navigate. He felt there was a degree of certainty of need predicted for patients. He 
said there was a phone number ambulance crews could ring if they thought a patient 
could use an alternative pathway, this service advised them on the route to set up for 
the patient. He said the whole system could be simplified and made better, especially 
for patients. 
  
The Co-Chair Healthwatch Wolverhampton wanted to know if virtual wards had had 
any impact on conveyancing. 
  
The Strategy and Engagement Officer WMAS felt the evidence had not been 
gathered yet to provide the information needed to be able to comment on this with 
anything substantive. 
  
 

6 Integrated Care System Review of Strategy, Performance and Priorities 
The Wolverhampton Managing Director ICB stated he was reporting to the Panel on 
oversight and strategy for the Integrated Care Board (ICB) in relation to the 
Integrated Care System (ICS). 
  
The Director of Partnerships and Transformation ICB stated that the Integrated Care 
Partnership (ICP) was a statutory committee, a forum of local authorities and the ICB 
and this partnership was legally obligated to provide a strategy. They had had a 
series of development sessions held between autumn 2022 and spring 2023. The 
meetings led to the development of an initial Integrated Care Strategy, published in 
March 2023. Over the previous 4 months there had been developments, these were: 
the ICP now had a core membership, the ICP membership and partnership had 
recently met for the first time and approved its terms of reference, they had regularly 
been updating health and wellbeing boards on core issues within business plans. 
The ICP membership included representatives and partners from all relevant 
organisations within the Black Country, this added to collaborative partnership 
approaches. 
  
The Chair of Black Country ICB & ICP stated that the ICP was an important part of 
the overall system. He said the previous system was competitive, with Trusts trying 
to maximise the number of patients they could take on and those not as competitive 
lost out on money given to them by the government. This has been changed and 
now the ICS aimed to get Trusts and partners to work in collaboration. He said that 
collectively across the Black Country, there were 650,000 people that fell into the 
most deprived 25% of the national population. He said the Black Country was the 

Page 10



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

second worst in these figures behind Birmingham. He said this was why it was 
important to change approach, otherwise they would keep getting the same result. 
He also stated that the aging population added more pressure on the service, as they 
would be more fragile and vulnerable to health issues, which would cost money and 
take up bed space. He said a stronger emphasis on prevention was required. He 
said it was important that place-based partnerships delivered the service and worked 
together locally and that the ICP would play an important co-ordinating role in this. 
The strategy the ICP set, the NHS partnership organisations would then need to 
deliver upon. 
  
The Wolverhampton Managing Director stated that it was a complex system and that 
this complexity was added to at a Black Country level, given it contained 4 places 
and 4 hospitals. He said at a place-based level, Wolverhampton was a crucial 
component and that the smooth working of the health and wellbeing board was vital. 
 
The Wolverhampton Managing Director said the ICB had been responsible for 
commissioning pharmacy, optometry and dental services, these had previously been 
commissioned by NHS England at a Midlands level. This team now worked for the 
ICB through an office in the West Midlands. The ICB also commissioned some 
specialised services. The ICB hosted the teams responsible for these at their office. 
They would be collaborating further with the West Midlands Ambulance Service. He 
stated that OneWolverhampton was an important part of the ICS. 
 
The Chair stated that it was reported the previous May that there was a £69 million 
deficit in the Black Country ICB. She wanted to know where this figure now stood 
and how this would impact on services. 
  
The Chair of Black Country ICB and ICP replied that money was tight in the system. 
He said hospitals lost money on accident and emergency departments as well as 
maternity services but that these were essential services to offer. He said that some 
hospitals within the Black Country treated patients from other areas, such as 
Staffordshire, and hospitals were not allocated as much money for patients from 
those areas as they were Black Country residents. He said often, due to the Black 
Country hospitals having better handover times with the ambulance service 
compared to other areas within the Black Country, they often received diverted 
emergency patients from outside of the Black Country which contributed to the 
financial challenge. He stated that the deficit had now grown to a larger amount, 
inflation was a pressure on the rising deficit. He said industrial action had also added 
to their deficit. He said they had agreed as an NHS system a financial recovery plan 
in an attempt to try get the budgets to balance again in the future. He said this was 
an issue across the NHS nationally and was not a local phenomenon. 
  
The Chair wanted to know if they had policies in place across the system should a 
Accident and Emergency department have to close at one of the hospitals in the 
region. 
  
The Wolverhampton Managing Director ICB stated that they had a strategic centre 
that co-ordinated the management system. The ICB, ambulance service and the 
hospital trusts reviewed the operations of their system to allow them to co-ordinate 
as best possible their overall system performance. 
 
The Chair referenced the report provided and noted other Trusts were struggling 

Page 11



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

more than others within the ICS. She wanted to ensure funds intended for 
Wolverhampton would not be removed to plug the gaps in other Trust services 
outside of its area. 
 
There was general discussion and debate between the Panel and representatives of 
the ICB about finance. The overall position was that being part of an ICS meant 
funds were now treated as part of that entire system and therefore previously 
allocated money under the older NHS management format (Wolverhampton Clinical 
Commissioning Group) was no longer specifically allocated to Wolverhampton. The 
funds were now system wide across the Black Country and would be used in that 
manner. 
  
The Chair referred to the Local Government Association (LGA) report on ICPs 
nationally, she wanted to know what the partners had learnt from the report and what 
they intended to put into practice from that, if anything. 
  
The Director of Partnerships and Transformation ICB said there was a lot within the 
report to pull from in how they constructed their partnerships across the Black 
Country. He said there was lots of emphasis in the report on partnerships to tackle 
the issues in the local areas. He said supporting broader social economic value was 
a strong aim of the partnership. He said the Black Country ICB had been highlighted 
in the report on policies they had with social housing. 
  
A Councillor said he was concerned about Walsall NHS Trusts economic 
performance and wanted reassurance they would improve as a partner of the ICS. 
  
The Chair of the ICB and ICP stated that the report showed how Trusts were moving 
away from an individualist organisation approach towards a more collaborative 
approach, he cited the Black Country Trusts as an example in how they were 
working together to collectively improve pathways across the system. He said 
Walsall was improving as it was learning from its Black Country partners, who were 
also supporting it. 
  
A member of the Panel asked where they could view the ICP’s terms of reference 
and minutes from meetings. 
  
The Chair of the ICB and ICP stated they were listed on their website. 
 
A Councillor stated he believed pharmacies were due to be given permission to 
prescribe anti-biotics to patients. He wanted to know how much the ICB had a say 
over this and the roll out. 
 
The Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB said an example of this had been 
brought to the Panel in December in the documents provided. He said without an 
expert in pharmacy present it would be difficult to give a detailed answer. He said the 
launch of pharmacy first was about extending the role of community pharmacies as 
an alternative to the general practice to allow them to prescribe some medicines and 
relieve pressure on GPs.  He said he would look into the role of pharmacies in 
prescribing anti-biotics and provide a written response from the Wolverhampton 
pharmacy provider to the Panel. 
  

Page 12



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

The Councillor replied stating he understood that the government would be giving 
funds to NHS England for the pharmacy first scheme, he wanted to know if the ICB 
had any say over how the money would be distributed locally. 
  
The Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB stated that the money would come 
through the ICB and they would have influence, but as it was a national policy, there 
would be expectations and criteria set to the money allocation. 
 
The Vice Chair cited page 52 of the report, quoting the ICB deficit and how discussed 
the ICB  making a surplus. He felt the finances displayed were confusing. He referred 
to page 27, and wanted to know when the phased delegations would be occurring. 
He also referred to page 36 and wanted an expansion on the work being done with 
local authorities in educating patients, working with schools and the university. He 
also asked for any Wolverhampton specific examples. 
  
The Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB replied that the information provided on 
page 27 was very early in the process and was still being formulated in partnership. 
He said work had been done with OneWolverhampton to encourage people to take 
up cancer screening. He said the way they commissioned services needed to be 
done in a collaborative manner, emphasising partnership working to draw up their 
outcomes. 
  
The Director of Public Health emphasised that OneWolverhampton enabled them to 
bring to the ICP Wolverhampton’s needs and avoided an approach where strategies 
were at a Black Country level generally, without looking at the specifics of an area. 
 

7 Healthwatch GP Services Survey 
The Manager Healthwatch Wolverhampton reported to the panel that access to GP 
services remained an issue locally and that this was their third time bringing an item 
on primary care access to the Panel as requested.  Over the last quarter, 46% of 
information they had collated involved general practices, with 61% of the information 
collated being a negative sentiment. The feedback received concerned access to GP 
appointments, communication pathways and issues, as well as response times. They 
also looked into the running of Patient Participation Groups (PPGs). She listed some 
limitations of the research which was listed in the methodology. The Manager of 
Healthwatch Wolverhampton stated that 65% of respondents preferred to book a GP 
appointment via the phone as opposed to using website/app bookings, despite 
knowing that phone bookings could take a considerable length of time. She stated 
that from her perspective this showed it was important that patients had a choice in 
the ways they wanted to book appointments, despite a push towards digital from 
within the NHS.  She said that call times varied in some Primary Care Networks 
(PCNs) which had worsened, whereas some had improved. In terms of engagement 
with Healthwatch, some PCNs had significantly improved results: she cited Royal 
Wolverhampton Trust (RWT) as an example, in December 2022 only 3 of their 8 
PCNs would engage with the Healthwatch survey via the phone, whereas for the 
recent research, all 8 participated. More generally, there had been improvements in 
signposting across GPs, in particular to pharmacies, which was in line with the GP 
Recovery plan where pharmacies were set to play a bigger role. She informed that 
Panel that a number of practices had said they did not know when the last PGG 
group had been held or that it had been a long time since one had last been held, 
one PCN said they did not know if they had a PPG. For website booking, the majority 
of respondents said they found it to be a positive experience. However, 50% of 

Page 13



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

respondents also said they could not book an appointment online via their practice 
website, with many stating they couldn’t get same day appointments if they used the 
online service. A barrier to digital inclusion was people aged over 65, most of whom 
reported they were not able to use the online service and needed to use the phone to 
book appointments. Healthwatch recommended all practice websites should be 
updated with guidance to make them clearer to patients how they could access 
services and book appointments easier, practices to involve patients in how to 
improve websites, ICB to continue to ensure practices inform patients about PPGs. 
  
The Chair asked if any practices refused to engage with Healthwatch when they 
called them. 
  
The Manager Healthwatch Wolverhampton that within the Wolverhampton North 
PCN, 3 practices refused to engage with them, which was also the number that 
refused to engage in the December 2022 survey, Unity West PCN had one refusal. 
She stated that overall 6 practices refused to engage.  
 
The Chair stated that she wanted the Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB to write 
to the practices which would not engage with Healthwatch Wolverhampton to inform 
them they have a legal responsibility to engage with Healthwatch Wolverhampton. 
 
The Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB stated he was happy to work with the 
Manager Healthwatch Wolverhampton to understand which practices were not 
engaging. He stated it should be noted that overall engagement had improved across 
the Wolverhampton PCNs and said that there may be issues with receptionists not 
understanding questions around PPGs so that they could not give an answer. 
  
The Chair stated that she wanted the ICB to deliver a small project where they 
trained GP receptionists about PPGs to ensure they had the knowledge. The Chair 
referred to the survey report and stated that one of the reasons given for PPGs not 
occurring in some areas was a lack of uptake from patients to get involved. She 
wanted to know what the ICB were going to do to engage with patients and increase 
uptake. 
  
The Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB said they had brought to the Panel 
previously information at work they were doing with Chairs of PPGs to improve PPG 
activity. He said the Healthwatch survey was helpful as they could now concentrate 
further on areas where PPGs are not active or not active enough to improve them. 
 
The Chair stated that Healthwatch Wolverhampton made a number of 
recommendations to improve the service, she wanted to know if the ICB accepted 
those recommendations and if they were going to produce an action plan displaying 
how they were going to implement them. 
  
The Managing Director Wolverhampton ICB stated that they had not had the time to 
fully review the recommendations so he could not commit to accepting them until 
they had been reviewed fully. 
  
The Chair stated that she would like it noted and raised at the next Health Scrutiny 
meeting during the minutes segment to ask the ICB again about the 
recommendations. 
  

Page 14



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

A member of the Panel wanted it noting that the average time to answer phone calls 
had more than doubled and he wanted the ICB to look into that too. 
  
A Councillor stated he would be interested in seeing the numbers of missed 
appointments at GP services, as well as stats on incidents of abuse towards staff.  
  
 

8 Tuberculosis In Wolverhampton – Stats and Review 
The Principle Public Health Specialist began the presentation (a copy is attached to 
the signed minutes) by explaining what tuberculosis (TB) was, what caused it and 
how it was cured. An infectious disease, caused by bacteria, which was deadly if left 
untreated and could kill.  Most cases were curable with a 6-month case of anti-
biotics, although some cases of TB were becoming drug resistant. She informed the 
Panel that there was also latent tuberculosis (LTB) where the disease could lie 
dormant in a person and not show symptoms, until a time when they got ill with 
something else, it would then develop. The risk of developing TB was much higher in 
people who had AIDS.  England was a low incident country with a 3 year average of 
7.7 cases per 100,000 population but Wolverhampton was much higher than the 
English average for cases of TB, recorded at 19.9 cases per 100,000 population. 
However, recently the gap between Wolverhampton instances of TB and the English 
average was starting to reduce. Everyone was at risk of catching TB, but it was more 
common in people with weakened immune systems, people who had migrated from 
countries with high instances of TB and men, who were 4 times more likely than 
women to catch TB.  Social risk factors for a higher likelihood of TB included those 
from the 10% most deprived backgrounds, people born outside of the UK (13 times 
more likely to develop TB), those who abused drugs and alcohol, were homeless and 
those imprisoned.  
  
The Principle Public Health Specialist stated that whilst Wolverhampton had higher 
than average rates of TB in the population, its services and outcomes to tackle TB 
ranked higher than the national average, meaning they were better. 
  
Senior Public Health Specialist gave a LTB patient journey example: a migrant from 
Afghanistan arrives in the UK is eligible for LTB testing and is invited to a clinic, upon 
arrival they were tested and if LTB was found in them, treatment began and across 
several weeks they returned to give blood samples and were monitored until the LTB 
was no longer detected in their system. For TB cases, they were reviewed by a GP, 
then referred to the TB team, within one day they were tested, isolated and their 
family referred to have TB screening, they would then be treated and monitored for 
several months for TB until they no longer tested positive. 
  
The Principle Public Health Specialist stated that partnership working across the ICS 
would be essential to tackle TB in Wolverhampton. 
  
The Vice-Chair thanked the Public Health team for their presentation. He stated that 
he had had developed TB in the past after having LTB unknown in his system and 
recognised the importance of testing. He wanted assurances that new arrivals to the 
country had the support needed to ensure they were checked for LTB and given the 
healthcare needed to stop it developing further. 
  
A Councillor stated that some people, such as foreign students studying in the area 
who had VISAs, had rules to follow prior to coming to the UK, to have TB tests and 

Page 15



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 
 
 

 
Minutes 

treatment 6 months before entering the UK. Whereas in other instances of migration 
this was not always the case, he wanted to ensure migrants placed in local hotels 
had access to and were encouraged to have LTB testing and treatment, should they 
test positive. 
  
A member of the Panel stated that Wolverhampton’s figures were high. She said that 
the area had high levels of migration and in different wards, there were differing 
levels of integration. She wanted to know if there was data available for the wards 
showing trends of migration and those who were newly arrived. 
  
The Director of Public Health responded saying that TB and LTB could affect all 
people, ages and communities. He said it would not be appropriate to use data 
specific to a certain characteristic as it could generate conclusions which were 
biased or incorrect if not taking into account all other characteristics. He highlighted 
the reducing figures of TB instances in the City and stated that partnership 
approaches were working. 
  
A Councillor said he agreed with the Director of Public Health and said there were 
high instances of TB in the country prior to initial waves of large migration and said it 
was not fair to focus solely on migrants. 
  
  

Page 16



Transport
Non-Emergency Patient Transport 

& General Transport 

Ruth Horton – Associate Deputy Chief Operating Officer
Lindsay Ibbs-George – Divisional Manager, 

Estates & Facilities 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 N
o: 4



Non-Emergency Patient Transport
• ERS Medical Services Transport all patients in/out of RWT locations if the patient 

is registered to a Staffordshire GP which includes South 
Staffordshire/Cannock/Stoke/North Staffordshire/East Staffordshire
• All other ICB patients within the Black Country area are transported by West 

Midlands Ambulance Service – this is the majority of our patients coming into 
RWT.
• Telford/Shrewsbury patients transported to RWT outpatients by EZEC ambulance 

services
• Clinics transported to includes 5 x Renal units, Community clinics, West Park 

Hospital, Cannock Hospital, Maltings Mobility Centre.
• 24/7 service, main outpatient clinics serviced between 8am and 7pm.

P
age 18



Non-Emergency Patient Transport cont
• Out of hours transport from 7pm-8am normally discharges out of 

wards or Emergency Departments.
• Other Hospitals in the region ie Russells Hall/Walsall Manor have the 

same non-emergency ambulance service provision
• WMAS can have up to 500 journeys a day servicing RWT locations
• ERS can have up to 100 journeys a day servicing RWT locations
• Renal Patients are also transported on a Saturday to the 5 x Renal 

Units
• Other weekend transport normally discharges from wards
    or Emergency Department. 

P
age 19



Non-Emergency Patient Transport cont

• Eligibility Criteria is in place based on medical need only.
• Definition of Medical Need “Clinical need for treatment does not imply a need for 

patient transport. The principle which applies is that the patient must be able to 
reach and return from hospital in a reasonable time and in reasonable comfort, 
without detriment to their medical condition. If this is not possible, patient 
transport may be provided.
• National guidance produced by the DoH in 2022 stipulates what should be 

included within the criteria
• http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/B1244-nepts-

eligibility-criteria.pdf
• Patients are advised/questioned on this eligibility when booking their transport 

and may have their booking refused if not eligible.

P
age 20

http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/B1244-nepts-eligibility-criteria.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/B1244-nepts-eligibility-criteria.pdf


Non-Emergency Patient Transport cont

• The contract stipulates that all patients should arrive 30mins before or 10 
minutes after their appointment time, therefore patients are told to be 
ready up to 2 hours before their appointment time as traffic and other 
patient collections can affect this.
• Discharges - 95% of patients should be collected within 120 minutes after 

being booked ready to travel. (most bookings are on the day)
• Outpatients – 95% of patients should be collected within 90 minutes after 

being booked ready to travel. (all planned journeys)
• Patients that may be treated in our hospital in a tertiary service or due to 

requirement for emergency care when away from home,  who reside in 
another region i.e. Devon/Wales would be collected by ‘their’ transport 
provider.

P
age 21



Non-Emergency Patient Transport cont
• During ‘winter pressures’ a private ambulance service supports with 

discharges out of the discharge lounge or bespoke transport requirements.  
This enables us to maintain flow when the Trust is facing capacity pressures 
and there is increased activity for the ambulance services.
• In 2023/24 (to-date), non-emergency transport activity is approx 60% 

above the original contracted levels.  This is in terms of numbers and 
complexity of patients. Recognising the impact on service provision 
discussions are taking place between the ICB, Ambulance service and the 
Trust Executive Team.
• Financial help is available under the governments Healthcare Travel Cost 

Scheme for patients who do not have a medical need for Ambulance 
transport and who cannot meet the cost of travel. Patients can claim if they 
receive certain benefits. https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/help-with-
health-costs/healthcare-travel-costs-scheme-htcs/
• Patients are made aware of the scheme by either the department they are 

visiting and/or the benefit office they are associated to.

P
age 22

https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/help-with-health-costs/healthcare-travel-costs-scheme-htcs/
https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/help-with-health-costs/healthcare-travel-costs-scheme-htcs/


Partner Agencies 
• West Midlands Ambulance Service (contracted by Black Country ICB)
• ERS Medical Services (contracted by Staffordshire ICB)
• Staffordshire ICB
• Black Country ICB
• Cartello Ambulance Service (Private service used by RWT)
• Immediate Care Ambulance Service (Private service used by RWT)
• Britannia Taxi Service – (3rd party to WMAS)
• Triple 20 Taxi Service – (3rd party to WMAS)
• 24/7 Taxi service – (3rd party to ERS)

P
age 23



Relationship Management
• The Trust manages the admin team who book non-emergency transport (only Trust in the Black 

Country/West Midlands) 
• There is a WMAS discharge lead who works closely with the NEPTS and Capacity Team on site to 

prioritise discharges
• Supported ERS to ‘plan’ journeys at the start of their contract due to being unfamiliar with patient 

transport (weekly meetings with service and ICB)
• Home visits facilitated when there may be a difficult transfer
• Directorate Manager for Patient Services at the Trust participates in contract review meetings 

with the ICB and Service Providers
• Incidents for both services, which are mainly delays to transport, are shared with both ambulance 

services for them to investigate and reply to the Trust.  These are also shared with the ICB who 
manage the service

• Directorate Manager for Patient Services is part of the tender review and contract award process.
• Information provided to Councillor Carol Hyatt to support non emergency transport using the bus 

lanes in Wolverhampton to improve journey times

P
age 24



General Transport
• The Transport department is based out of Bentley Bridge in 

Wolverhampton. The Trust directly employs approximately 110 
drivers to provide the Transport service.
• Bentley Bridge is a warehouse facility that takes deliveries of 

continence products and stores for Wolverhampton community sites. 
Specimen sample products are also picked and packed within the 
warehouse for Wolverhampton GPs and community sites.
• All Transport vehicles are tracked using GPS technology.
• The department operates a garage to service and maintain the fleet.

P
age 25



Services Provided
• Radio Pharmacy Deliveries (ADR qualified drivers and 

vehicles)
• Clinical Waste collections (ADR qualified drivers and vehicles)
• Temperature controlled drug deliveries
• Specimen collections to UN 3373 regulations
• Postal deliveries
• Stores deliveries
• Furniture deliveries
• Minibus transport – patient and staff
• Temperature controlled food deliveries in 7.5t vehicle
• Discreet Continence delivery to 9000 patients own homes 

across the City

P
age 26



General Transport - Contracts
• The Trust Transport provide the following services to other organisations in 

addition to Wolverhampton services.
• Transport and Warehousing facilities to Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS 

Foundation Trust delivering courier services to over 100 locations for BCHC.
• Internal postage via courier for Birmingham Women's & Childrens Hospital NHS 

Foundation Trust
• Courier services to Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust.
• All Specimen collections for Black Country Pathology Services
• Specimen collections to over 1000 GPs daily for Cytology.  Collections across 

Hereford, Worcester, Coventry, Warwick, Shrewsbury, Stoke, Telford, Birmingham 
and the Black Country

P
age 27



Partner Organisations 

• Sandwell and West Birmingham NHS Trust
• University of Birmingham NHS Trust
• Black Country Healthcare NHS Trust
• Wolverhampton City Council
• Arnold Clark
• Black Country Pathology Services
• Birmingham Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
• Walsall Healthcare NHS Trust

P
age 28



Over 2,000,000 miles 
travelled per year!

80 vehicles including 7.5t, 
3.5t minibuses, large 
courier vans, refrigerated 
vans, courier vans

P
age 29



Thank you 

Any Questions 

P
age 30



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

 
  
 Health Scrutiny Panel 

21 March 2024 
 

  
Report title: 

 

Report of: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Portfolio: 

Pharmaceutical Services in Wolverhampton 
 
 
Parmdip Dhillon, Principal Public Health 
Specialist, City of Wolverhampton Council 
 
Sukhvinder Sandher, Acting Head of Medicines 
Management – Wolverhampton place, NHS 
Black Country ICB 
 
Hema Patel, Community Pharmacy and Public 
Health Lead Pharmacist, NHS Black Country 
ICB 
 
Daniel Attry, Head of Community Pharmacy 
Clinical Services, Black Country ICS 
 
 
Public Health and NHS Black Country ICB 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 
 
The Health Scrutiny Panel is recommended to receive for information and assurance a joint 
update on the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment and the commissioning arrangements for 
community pharmaceutical services in Wolverhampton. 

 
 

  

Page 31

Agenda Item No: 5



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

1.0 Introduction  
 
1.1 It is the statutory duty of every Health and Wellbeing board to publish a Pharmaceutical 

Needs Assessment for their geographical footprint, on a 3-year cycle. The current 
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) was published in 2022, for the 3-year period 
2022-2025. 

1.2 On behalf of the Wolverhampton Health and Wellbeing Together Board, members of the 
Public Health department worked closely with partners across the pharmaceutical sector 
in Wolverhampton on this PNA, including the Local Pharmaceutical Committee, the Black 
Country ICB, Healthwatch and Central Health. The PNA can be found here: 
https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/health-and-
wellbeing/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment-2022-2025  

 
2.0 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 
 
2.1 The PNA process involves surveying pharmacies, as part of this process 100% of 

pharmacies in the city were surveyed, which ensures that there were no gaps in the 
intelligence used to inform the assessment of inequalities. The PNA looked to highlight any 
gaps and inequalities that may have become evident during the assessment. A public 
survey posted on the council website was promoted in the press and on social 
media. 311 residents responded giving us valuable insights into how people use 
community pharmacies and their opinions on the accessibility of services. 

 
2.2 The PNA concluded that there was sufficient provision of pharmaceutical services for the 

population of Wolverhampton, but there had been a reduction in out of hours services, 
including the loss of a 100-hour pharmacy, therefore the situation should be monitored 
closely. 

 
2.3 Since October 2022, when the PNA was published, there have been 4 closures of 

community pharmacies, 7 changes in ownership, 1 new distance selling pharmacy and 8 
changes in opening hours. A supplementary statement (Appendix 1) has been prepared 
to outline these changes. There are not deemed to be any new gaps in provision at this 
current time.  

 
2.4 The next iteration of the PNA is due in 2025 and work on this will commence in the autumn 

of 2024. 
 
 
3.0  ICB Commissioning of Pharmaceutical Services 
 
3.1 From 1 April 2023 NHS England delegated responsibility to all ICBs for the direct 

commissioning of pharmaceutical services with the aim to provide opportunity for 
managing local population health needs, tackling inequalities, and addressing fragmented 
pathways of care. This enables ICBs to support approaches to designing services and 
pathways of care that better meet local priorities. Delegation should also provide greater 

Page 32

https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/health-and-wellbeing/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment-2022-2025
https://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/health-and-wellbeing/pharmaceutical-needs-assessment-2022-2025


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

flexibility to integrate services across care pathways, ensuring continuity for patients, 
improved health outcomes for the local population and optimised use of resources. 
Certain functions are retained by NHS England such as national pharmaceutical contract 
development and negotiations, performers list management, wider aspects of professional 
regulation and national transformation programmes. 
 

3.2  During 2022/23 the Black Country ICB worked with NHS England and the other West 
Midland ICBs to plan for delegation, with a first key objective of ensuring a smooth transfer 
of the delegated pharmacy services in April 2023. This included retaining the expertise 
residing in the West Midlands pharmaceutical, general optometry, and dental services 
(PODs) through the establishment of a host and lead ICB arrangements.  
This POD group, work to an agreed West Midlands-wide work programme, and the ICBs 
benefit from working together and at scale, to provide value and benefits to their 
populations and systems. 
There is a West Midlands multi-ICB and NHSE Joint Committee that provides underpinning 
governance, by providing commissioning operational oversight and making commissioning 
decisions. 

 
3.3 The ICB commission the following locally commissioned services: 
 

Minor Ailments Service: this service aims to improve access and choice for people with 
minor ailments by enabling those who wish to, to be seen by a community pharmacist. The 
pharmacist will provide advice and support to people on the management of minor 
ailments, including where necessary, the supply of medicines for the treatment of the minor 
ailment, for those people who would have otherwise gone to their GP for a prescription. 
 

In Wolverhampton, there are 31 pharmacies providing this service and from April 2023 to 
January 2024 a total of 3,741 consultations took place saving just over 574 hours of GP 
time (based on unit costs of Health and Social Care 2022 document; it takes on average 
9.22 minutes for a GP consultation.) 
 

 
Community Urgent Eyecare Service (CUEs): This service allows the pharmacist the 
supply of medication requested directly to a patient where an optometrist working within 
the CUEs pathway decides to manage a condition and prescribes/recommends medication 
for patients to gain prompt access to their care or treatment for their ocular condition. 
 
Specialist Palliative Care Drugs Service: Four pharmacies across Wolverhampton stock 
End of Life medication to allow prompt access. 

The ICB have supported the implementation of the national advanced service Pharmacy 
First to improve access to primary care. This service involves pharmacists providing advice 
and NHS-funded treatment, where clinically appropriate, for seven common conditions: 
sore throat, sinusitis, shingles, urinary tract infections, infected insect bites, impetigo and 
acute otitis media.  The latter four have been provided in Wolverhampton for a few years 
as they were commissioned by the Midlands Regional NHSE and due to their success 
locally, have now been incorporated into the seven clinical pathways of the national 

Page 33

https://kar.kent.ac.uk/100519/1/Unit%20Costs%20of%20health%20and%20Social%20Care%202022%20%28amended%2013%20July%202023%29.pdf


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Pharmacy First Service.  Consultations for these seven clinical pathways can be provided 
to patients presenting to the pharmacy as well as those referred by NHS 111, general 
practices and others.  In Wolverhampton, 57 out of 60 Pharmacies are registered to provide 
the service. 

Since the commencement of Pharmacy First 31st January 2024, nationally thousands of 
consultations have taken place in the first few days of the service. The new service has 
been a huge undertaking for the sector, community pharmacy teams have worked 
extremely hard to prepare for the launch. 

Pharmacy First also incorporates the elements of the Community Pharmacist 
Consultation Service (CPCS), i.e. minor illness consultations with a pharmacist and the 
supply of urgent medicines (and appliances), both following a referral from NHS 111, 
general practices and other authorised healthcare providers (i.e. patients are not able to 
present to the pharmacy without a referral. (Urgent supply referrals are not allowed from 
general practices).  

Since December 2021, under the CPCS minor illness element, 7657 referrals were made, 
saving a total of 1,176 hours of GP time. 

  
4.0 Implications 
 
4.1 Please detail any known implications in relation to this report: 

 
• Financial implications – no immediate financial implications 
• Legal implications - Health and Wellbeing Boards are under a statutory duty to produce 

and publish a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment. This duty has been fulfilled as a 
result of the completion of the PNA for 2022-25. 

• Equalities implications – considered  
• Environmental implications – N/A 
• Human resources implications – N/A 
• Corporate landlord implications – N/A 
• Risks – None noted 

 
 
5.0 Schedule of background papers 
 
6.0 The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the report 

writer: 
 
 Appendix 1 – PNA Supplementary Statement 
 

INSERT YOUR SIGNATURE AND DETAILS 
 

 

Page 34

https://cpe.org.uk/national-pharmacy-services/advanced-services/community-pharmacist-consultation-service/
https://cpe.org.uk/national-pharmacy-services/advanced-services/community-pharmacist-consultation-service/


 

 

                                                           City of 
Wolverhampton Council  

2022-2025 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA): Supplementary Statement  

This supplementary statement serves as an update to the original PNA published on the 23rd 
September 2022, following changes to pharmaceutical provision since the publication of the PNA. Due 
to the scale of changes, it was deemed that producing another PNA would be a disproportionate 
response to these changes, given a full update of the PNA is due in 2025.  

 

Removal from pharmaceutical list 

The following pharmacies have closed, and are therefore removed from the pharmaceutical list:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pharmacy 
name/ODS code 

Address Opening hours Effective 
from 

Proximity to 
nearest 

pharmacy 
 

Boots UK Ltd 
(FRT58) 

8 Trysull Road, 
Bradmore, 

Wolverhampton, 
West Midlands, 

WV3 7HT 
 

 
Mon-Sat: 9am-12pm; 

1pm- 5pm 

 
 

02/03/2024 

 
15 min walk; 
2 min drive 
 
 

 
Boots UK Ltd 

(FD642) 

2 Blackhalve Lane, 
Wolverhampton, 

WV11 1BH 
 

 
Mon-Fri: 9am-6pm, 

Sat: 9am-5.30pm 

 
02/03/2024 

 
1 min walk; 
1 min drive 
 

 
Lloyds Pharmacy 

Ltd (FHH67) 

Rookery Street, 
Wednesfield, West 

Midlands, WV11 
1UP 

 
Mon-Fri: 7am-11pm 

Sat: 7am-10pm,  
Sun: 10am-4pm 

 

 
 

14/06/2023 

 
5 min walk; 
2 min drive  

 
Boots UK Ltd 

(FV523) 

92 Windmill Lane, 
Castlecroft, 

Wolverhampton, 
West Midlands, 

WV3 8HG 

 
Mon-Fri: 9am-6pm 

Sat: 9am-5pm 

 
 

23/03/2024 

 
19 min walk; 
4 min drive  

Page 35



 

 

Changes to ownership, and remote openings 

The following pharmacies have had either a change of ownership (COO) or are a new distance selling 
pharmacy (operating remotely via delivery services):  

Pharmacy/ODS code Address Changes Effective from 

 
ADM Healthcare Ltd t/a 

Brutons pharmacy (FAA92) 

 
Prouds lane, Bilston, 

Wolverhampton, WV14 
6PW 

 
COO from Boots 

pharmacy (FLC50) 

 
 

           23/10/2023 

 
Epharma Ltd t/a Erpharma 
Online pharmacy (FJC75) 

 

 
UnitB2, Guys motors 
industrial park, park 

lane, Wolverhampton, 
WV10 9QF 

 
New distance selling 

pharmacy 

 
 
 

02/10/2023 

 
Jnagal Ltd t/a Heath town 

pharmacy (FMW43) 

 
181 Wednesfield road, 

heath town, 
Wolverhampton, WV10 

0EN 

 
COO from Lloyds 
pharmacy (FEL07) 

 
10/02/2023 

 
Jacksons Pharma Ltd t/a 
Upper Green pharmacy 

(FWX18) 
 

5 upper green, 
Tettenhall, 

Wolverhampton, WV6 
8QQ 

 
COO from Upper 
Green pharmacy 

(FHT03) 

 
01/03/2023 

 
LP SD Ninety Eight Limited 

t/a Crest pharmacy 
(FKQ28) 

58 high street, 
Wednesfield, 

Wolverhampton, WV11 
1SZ 

COO from Lloyds 
pharmacy (FW272) 

  
 24/10/2023 

 
LP SD Eighteen Limited t/a 
Lloyds pharmacy (FCM26) 

1/20 the Broadway, 
Bushbury, 

Wolverhampton, WV10 
8EB 

COO from Lloyds 
pharmacy (FTY49) 

 

 
15/08/2023 

 
LP SD Eighteen Limited t/a 
Lloyds pharmacy (FGT74) 

 

Penn Manor Medical 
centre, manor road, 

Penn, WV4 5PY 

COO from Lloyds 
pharmacy (FYM33) 

 
15/08/2023 

 
Jacksons pharma Ltd t/a 
Lower green pharmacy 

(FH253) 
 

 
Lower green health 
centre, lower street, 
Tettenhall, WV6 9LL 

 
COO from Lloyds 

pharmacy (FRH31) 

  
 02/05/2023 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

 

Change of opening hours 

The following pharmacies have had a change of opening hours:  

Pharmacy name/ODS 
code 

Address Opening hours Effective from 

 
 

 Supercare Pharmacy 
(FDJ45) 

 

 
 

420 Dudley Road, 
Wolverhampton, WV2 

3AY 
 

 
Previous opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-1.30pm; 

2.30pm- 7pm 
 
 

New opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-1.30pm; 

2.30pm-6pm 

 
 
 
 

12/02/2024 

 
 
 

Saffron Apothecaries/ 
Phoenix Health Centre 

Ltd (FHV89) 
 

 
 

The Phoenix Health 
Centre, Parkfield Road, 
Wolverhampton, WV4 

6ED 
 

 
Previous opening hours: 

Mon-Sat: 7.30am- 
10.30pm 

Sun: 10am- 8pm 
 

New opening hours: 
Mon-Sat: 9am-1pm; 2pm- 

9pm 
Sun: 10am-8pm 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

22/01/2024 

 
 
 

PCT Healthcare Ltd/ 
Murrays Pharmacy 

(FDH98) 

 
 

128 Childs Avenue, 
Coseley, Bilston, West 
Midlands, WV14 9XB 

 
Previous opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am- 6:30pm 

Sat: 9am- 5:30pm 
 

New opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-1:30; 2pm- 

6.30pm 
Sat: 9am- 1pm 

 

 
 
 
 

08/09/2023 

Page 37



 

 
 
 

J Docter Pharmacy 
(FTD98) 

 
 
 

73 Stubby Lane, 
Wednesfield, 

Wolverhampton, WV11 
3NE 

 

 
Previous opening hours: 
Mon-Thurs: 9am-5.30pm 

Fri: 9am-6pm 
Sat: 9am-1pm 

 
New opening hours: 

Mon-Fri: 9am-5.30pm 
Sat: 9am-1pm 

 

 
 
 

02/06/2023 

 
 
 
 

Portobello Pharmacy 
(FLH86) 

 
 
 

1A Vaughan Road, 
Portobello, Willenhall, 

WV13 3TJ 
 

 
Previous opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-1.30pm; 

2:30pm-7pm 
 
 

New opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-1.30pm; 

2:30-6pm 
 

 
 
 

30/03/2023 

 
 

Staveley Pharmacy 
(FMV70) 

 
 

212 Staveley Road, 
Whitmore Reans, 

Wolverhampton, WV1 
4RS 

       
Previous opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-1pm; 2pm-

6pm 
 

New opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am- 1pm; 

2pm-7pm 
 

 
 
 

14/04/2023 

 
 

Ettingshall Pharmacy 
(FFN96) 

 
Ettingshall Pharmacy, 3 

New St, Ettingshall, 
Wolverhampton, WV2 

2LR 
 

 
Previous opening hours: 

Mon-Fri: 9am-5pm 
 

New opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am- 6pm 

 

 
 

01/12/2022 

Page 38



 

 
 
 

Morrisons Pharmacy 
(FQR39) 

 
 
 

Morrisons Supermarket, 
Black Country Route, 

Bilston, WV14 0DZ 
 

Previous opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 8.30am-8pm 

Sat: 8am-6pm 
Sun: 10am-4pm 

 
New opening hours: 
Mon-Fri: 9am-7pm 

Sat: 9am-6pm 
Sun: 10am-4pm 

 

 
 
 
 

31/10/2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



 

 

 

Appendix 1. Map of updated pharmaceutical provision across Wolverhampton, as of Feb 2024 

 

 

 

Date supplementary statement issued: ___________ 

Supplementary statement issued by: Public Health, City of Wolverhampton Council  

 

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	4 Royal Wolverhampton Trust Hospital Transport Service
	5 One Wolverhampton - Pharmacy
	Supplementary Statement v2


